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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

Share capital 

Statutory 

reserve 

Cash flow 

hedge reserve 

Retained 

earnings Total 

 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 

      

Balance at January 1, 2020 140,663 30,507 (66,080) 107,845 212,935 

Profit for the year - - - 43,158 43,158 

Other comprehensive income:      

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges  - - (19,246) - (19,246) 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or 

loss (note 18) - - 13,949 - 13,949 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the 

carrying amount of a non-financial asset - - 2,242 - 2,242 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - (3,055) 43,158 40,103 

Transfer to statutory reserve - 4,316 - (4,316) - 

Balance at December 31, 2020 140,663 34,823 (69,135) 146,687 253,038 

Profit for the year    47,826 47,826 

Other comprehensive income:      

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges  - - 6,023 - 6,023 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or 

loss (note 18) - - 19,144 - 19,144 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the 

carrying amount of a non-financial asset - - 1,603 - 1,603 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 26,770 47,826 74,596 

Transfer to statutory reserve - 4,783 - (4,783) - 

Balance at December 31, 2021 140,663 39,606 (42,365) 189,730 327,634 

 

 

 

 
 

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

     

 Note December 31, 

2021 

 December 31, 

2020 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

Profit for the year  47,826  43,158 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation  5 59,617  53,177 

Net movement of obsolete inventory  677  881 

Impairment allowance on trade receivables 7 836  1,225 

Amortisation of upfront fee 18 382  421 

Amortisation of TDS settlement  221  221 

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 11 233  207 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (3)  (220) 

Proceeds from Insurance claim                                                                          (6,137)  - 

Finance cost, net  24,416  27,924 

Deferred revenue  (3,737)  (3,747) 

Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost 14 2,236  2,510 

Operating profit before changes in working capital  126,567  125,757 

Changes in working capital:     

  Decrease / (increase) in inventories  1,714  (1,916) 

  Decrease / (increase) in receivables  143,932  (117,575) 

  Decrease / (increase) in other assets   1,052  (494) 

  (Increase) in advance payments for long term parts and 

repairs  

 

(16,988) 

 

(16,692) 

  (Decrease) / increase in other liabilities  (143,529)  110,464 

Cash generated from operations  112,748  99,544 

Payment of employees’ end of service benefits 11 (75)  (50) 

Net cash generated from operating activities  112,673  99,494 

     

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

Increase in fixed deposits  (22,504)  - 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 5 (12,647)  (7,039) 

Net movement in capital work in progress and capital 

spares 5 (914) 

 

(1,956) 

Proceeds from Insurance claim  6,137  - 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  3  220 

Net cash used in investing activities  (29,925)  (8,775) 

     

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

Repayment of bank borrowings 12 (64,821)  (58,209) 

Finance cost, net  (25,032)  (28,367) 

Net cash used in financing activities  (89,853)  (86,576) 

     

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash 

equivalents 

 

(7,105) 

 

4,143 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  25,194  21,051 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 18,089  25,194 

     

 

 

 

 

 
The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

1. STATUS AND ACTIVITIES 

 
Hidd Power Company BSC (c) (the “Company”) is a closed Joint Stock Company incorporated in the 

Kingdom of Bahrain on January 21, 2006 under commercial registration (CR) number 59322 issued by the 

Ministry of Industry, Commerce, and Tourism.  

 

The Company has an authorised share capital of USD 150,000,000, comprising 30,000,000 shares of USD 

5 each and issued and paid up share capital of USD 140,663,100 divided into 28,132,620 shares of USD 

5 each held as follows:  

 

Name of the Shareholder Number of shares 

  

Malakoff Summit Hidd Holding Company Limited  19,692,834 

Kahrabel FZE   8,439,786 

  

 

The Company commenced operations on January 22, 2006, upon entering into an Asset Transfer 

Agreement (the “agreement”) with the Ministry of Finance of the Government of Bahrain (“MoF”) and the 

Electricity and Water Authority of the Government of Bahrain (“EWA”), to buy the Al Hidd Power Plant 

(“power plant”) and related inventories, and operates the power plant on a build, own, operate basis. 

 

The Company also entered into a power and water purchase agreement (“PWPA”) with the EWA to sell all 

the output of the power plant to the EWA for a period of 20 years from the scheduled commercial operation 

date – May 18, 2008. Subsequent to that, the Company also concluded the following agreements relating 

to the power plant: 

 

 Land Rights Agreement with the MoF  

 Natural Gas Agreement with Tatweer Petroleum (previously with Bahrain Petroleum Company 

(“BAPCO”)) 

 

Subsequent to the commencement of its operations, the Company carried out construction of the Phase 

III project, a water distillation plant, as per the pre-requisite of the PWPA. This project was completed on 

achievement of Commercial Operations Date (“COD”) as on May 18, 2008. 

 

 

2.      BASIS OF PREPARATION 

 

Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are for the year ended December 31, 2021 and have been prepared in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) and the requirements of Bahrain 

Commercial Companies Law 2001. 

 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for the measurement 

at fair value of derivative financial instruments. 

 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional 

currency of the Company is Bahraini Dinars (‘BHD’) and the financial statements are presented in United 

States Dollar (‘USD’). The translation difference between the functional currency and the presentation 

currency is insignificant. All financial information presented in USD has been rounded off to the nearest 

thousand. 
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  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

 Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 

form the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 

readily apparent from other sources. 

 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that 

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. 

 

 Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the 

financial statements and in arriving at estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the 

following period include the estimate of total revenue over the lease period (note 4), fair value of 

derivative financial instruments (note 21), useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 4), 

impairment of non-financial assets (note 4), net cost of dismantling (note 14) and amortisation of costs 

incurred under the Long Term Parts & Repairs Agreements (LTPRA) (note 4). 

 

Going concern 

Management has assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that 

the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 

Board of Directors of the Company is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant 

doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements 

continue to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

 

 

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (IFRSs) 

 

3.1   New and revised Standards applied with no material impact on the financial statements 

 

In the current year, the Company has applied the below amendments to IFRS Standards and 

Interpretations issued by the Board that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 

01, 2021. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported 

in these financial statements. 

 

 Phase 2 amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform in IFRS 9, IFRS 7, IAS 39, IFRS 4 and 

IFRS 16: These amendments enables the Company to reflect the effects of transitioning from 

interbank offered rates (IBOR) to alternative benchmark interest rates (also referred to as ‘risk free 

rates’ or RFRs) without giving rise to accounting impacts that would not provide useful information 

to users of financial statements.  

 

 Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases relating to COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 

2021:  

 

In the previous year, amendment to IFRS 16 provided practical relief to lessees in accounting for 

rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical 

expedient to IFRS 16. This practical expedient was available to rent concessions for which any 

reduction in lease payments affected payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

In March 2021, the Board issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 

(Amendment to IFRS 16) that extends the practical expedient to apply to reduction in lease 

payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022. 

 

The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent 

concession is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change 

in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19-related rent concession applying IFRS 16 as if the 

change were not a lease modification. 

 

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of 

COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met: 

 

 The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially 

the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change 

 Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 

2022 (a rent concession meets this condition if it results in reduced lease payments on or before 

30 June 2022 and increased lease payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022) 

 There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease 

 

The application of these amendments did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial 

statements, since there were no rent concessions from lessors during the year. 

 

 

3.2  New and revised standards issued but not yet effective 

 

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following 

new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective: 

 

 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective from January 1, 2023). 

 

 Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates 

and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 

Venture (effective date not yet decided). 

 

 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current 

or Non-current (effective from January 1, 2023).  

 

 Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Reference to the Conceptual Framework (effective 

from January 1, 2022). 

 

 Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment related to proceeds before intended use 

(effective from January 1, 2022).  

 

 Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets related to Onerous 

Contracts—Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective from January 1, 2022). 

 

 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020: The Annual Improvements include 

amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (effective 

from January 1, 2022), IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective from January 1, 2022), IFRS 16 

Leases (effective date not yet decided) and IAS 41 Agriculture (effective from January 1, 2022). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

 Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making 

Materiality Judgements: Related to disclosure of accounting policies (effective from January 1, 2023). 

 

 Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition 

of Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective from January 1, 2023). 

 

 Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 

Single Transaction (effective from January 1, 2023). 

 

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the above Standards will have a material impact on the 

Company’s financial statements in future periods. 

 

 

4.      SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The significant accounting polices applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 

below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with 

those used in the previous year. 

 

Revenue recognition 

The PWPA arrangement with the EWA constitutes a lease under IFRS 16. The revenue from capacity sale 

of electricity and water (lease income) is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, 

adjusted for estimated increase in the capacity of water generation. An estimate of electricity and water 

capacity required to be made available to the EWA over the lease period as per the PWPA forms the basis 

for recognising the revenue over the lease term. Excess of amount of revenue billed to the EWA over the 

amount of revenue estimated for the reporting period is recognised as deferred revenue. 

 

The variable charge for sale of electricity and water is recognised as income when the electricity and water 

is delivered. The variable charge is arrived at based on the agreed tariff as per PWPA and the actual units 

of electricity and water delivered during the year.  

 

Gas consumed in operations is recovered from the EWA as part of sale of electricity and water. The actual 

amount of gas recovered by the company is recognized as revenue on the basis of the computation agreed 

as per the PWPA. 

 

Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised, as finance income in the statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income, on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the deposit 

 

Borrowings costs 

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 

time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. The amount of borrowing cost 

eligible for capitalisation on any qualifying asset is determined as actual borrowing cost incurred on the 

borrowings during the period less any investment income on temporary investment of those borrowings. 

Other borrowing costs are recognised as finance expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and allowances for 

impairment, if any. Historical cost includes purchase price of the items and expenditure that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the items except in case of production facilities, which also includes 

estimated cost of dismantling accounted at amortised cost basis. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

   

 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 

Company and the cost of the item or repairs can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 

are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial period 

in which they are incurred. 

 

One of the components of subsequent costs that are capitalised includes the costs related to the Long-

Term Parts and Repairs Agreement (LTPRA) entered into by the Company with a service provider. The 

costs incurred under this agreement are primarily for C-inspections (overhauling/inspection) of the gas 

turbines of the Company and for the cost of parts replaced/ refurbished as result of the 

overhauling/inspection of the gas turbines. The payments made under the LTPRA are initially recorded as 

advance payments till the time C-inspection of a turbine is performed, upon which, average cost of C-

inspection per turbine is transferred from the advance payments to the Property, Plant and Equipment; any 

shortfall in the advance payments is accrued as a liability, which represents cost of service received up to 

the date of C-inspection. 

 

The cost of C-inspection capitalised as part of the cost of plant is depreciated over a period up to the next 

C-inspection of the gas turbine i.e. over 4 to 5 years. 

 

The average cost of C-inspection per turbine is estimated by the management by estimating the total cost 

under LTPRA that includes lump-sum charges paid at the onset of the agreement and variable charges, 

which will be paid over the life of the LTPRA, based on the Estimated Operating Hours (EOH) of the 

turbines over the life of the LTPRA. Under the LTPRA, the Company transferred certain parts to the service 

provider. The book value of those parts on the date of such transfer has been considered as a component 

of the total cost of LTPRA. This total cost is spread over the total number of C-inspections agreed to be 

carried out under the LTPRA. 

 

Government grant 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the 

purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised 

in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable. 

 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost of property, plant and equipment to 

their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 

 

Asset category 

 

Estimated useful lives of the assets 

Production facilities:  

Plant acquired from EWA as per the PWPA 

Plant constructed (Phase III) 

C-inspection (under LTPRA) 

382 months 

360 months 

48 to 60 months 

Building and building improvements 240 to 382 months 

Other assets:  

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment’s 

Information technology assets 

12 to 60 months 

36 months 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

All depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The total 

amount of depreciation is classified into cost of revenue and general and administration expenses based 

on the use of the related property, plant and equipment’s for operational and administrative purposes, 

respectively. Capital spares are depreciated only when they are in use. Critical spares include major 

items and parts critical to be kept on hand to ensure uninterrupted operations, and are depreciated with 

a useful life of 8 years (till the end of PWPA). 

 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 

date. 

 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 

included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 

Capital work in progress is carried at an amount, which represents the value of the work completed as at 

the reporting date. 

 

Provision for dismantling cost 

 Provision for dismantling cost represents present value of the best estimate of the expenditure to be 

incurred to settle obligation under the land right agreement. The provision is recognized on amortised cost 

basis.  

 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at 

each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 

exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. 

 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 

to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

 

Inventories 

 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 

weighted average principle, and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 

them to their existing location and condition. Replacement price of inventory less estimated cost for 

disposal is estimated net realisable value of inventory. 

 

Receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less 

provision for impairment. 
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                                              NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balance with banks that are on demand. 

 

Other liabilities 

 Other liabilities include liabilities that are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or 

services received, whether billed by the supplier or not. 

 

Provision  

 Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past 

event, and the cost to settle the obligations are both probable and able to be reasonably measured. 

 

Employees’ end of service benefits 

Pensions and other social benefits for Bahraini employees are covered by the General Organisation for 

Social Insurance scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme under IAS 19 – Employee Benefits, to 

which employees and employers contribute monthly on a fixed-percentage-of-salaries basis.  

 

Expatriate employees are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the Bahrain Labour Law 2012, 

based on length of service and final salary and other allowances paid. Provision for this unfunded 

commitment, which represents a defined benefit scheme under IAS 19 – Employee Benefits, has been 

made by calculating the notional liability had all employees left at the reporting date. 

 

Foreign currency transactions 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional currency of 

the Company is Bahraini Dinars and the financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (‘USD’). 

The translation difference between the functional currency and the presentation currency is insignificant.  

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to USD at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 

of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date 

are translated into USD at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at that date.  

 

Foreign exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such foreign currency transactions and from 

the translation of monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 

year end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

 

Financial instruments 

 

(i) Recognition and initial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 

the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.  

 

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 

assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 
 

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement 

 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost; FVOCI or FVPL. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes 

its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are 

reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 

 it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and 

 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. 

 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 

amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses 

and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the 

profit or loss. 

 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 

on initial recognition. 

 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains 

and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in 

profit or loss. 

 

Refer note 21 for financial liabilities designated as hedging instruments. 

 

(iii) Derecognition 

 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 

which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 

and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 

 

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial 

position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In 

these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified 

and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability 

based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 

 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and 

the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised 

in profit or loss. 

 

(iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement of 

financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off 

the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 

liability simultaneously. 

 

(v) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities 

Derivative financial instruments are contracts, the value of which is derived from one or more underlying 

financial instruments and include interest rate swaps and currency forward contracts. These are held to 

hedge the Company’s foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. 

 

The derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position at fair value, 

attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  

 

On initial designation of the hedge, the Company formally documents the relationship between the 

hedging instrument and hedged item, including the risk management objectives and strategy in 

undertaking the hedge transaction, together with the methods that will be used to assess the 

effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Company makes an assessment, both at the inception of 

the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, whether the hedging instruments are expected 

to be “highly effective” in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged 

items during the period for which the hedge is designated. For a cash flow hedge of a forecast 

transaction, the transaction should be highly probable to occur and should present an exposure to 

variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect reported net income. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 

accounted for as described below. Fair values are estimated based on the prevailing market rates of 

interest and related foreign currency exchange rates. Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial 

instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that prove to be highly effective in 

relation to the hedged risk are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in a hedge 

reserve as a separate component of equity. The corresponding effect of the unrealised gains or losses 

recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised as other assets or other liabilities in the 

statement of financial position. The effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instruments 

recognised in other comprehensive income is removed and included in profit or loss in the same period 

as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss under the same line item in the statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income as the hedged item. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair 

value on derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting or are determined to be 

ineffective are recognised directly in the profit or loss. 

 

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, 

terminated, exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued 

prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income and  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

presented in the hedging reserve in equity remains there until the forecast transaction affects profit or 

loss. When the hedged item is a non-financial asset, the amount recognised in other comprehensive 

income is transferred to the carrying amount of the asset when the asset is recognised. If the forecast  

transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the balance in other comprehensive income is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

 

(vi) Impairment 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets 

measured at amortised cost. 

 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank balances 

for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) 

has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.When 

determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 

when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant 

and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information 

and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment including 

forward-looking information. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 

increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due. 

 

Measurement of ECLs 

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 

value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance 

with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

 

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 

amount of the assets. 

 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 

expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

5.      PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

  

 

 
Production 

facilities 

 
Building and 

improvements 

 
Other 
assets 

Capital 
work in 

progress 

Capital 
spares / 

critical spares 
 

Total 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 
Cost       
At January 1, 2020 1,389,660 32,117 5,794 1,099 2,777 1,431,447 
Additions 22,359 - 249 1,290 97 23,995 
Disposals (140) - - - - (140) 
Transfers  892 - 103 (739) 313 569 
Write-off - - - - (225) (225) 

At December 31, 2020 1,412,771 32,117 6,146 1,650 2,962 1,455,646 
Additions 12,228 - 419 1,015 88 13,750 
Disposals (5,394) - - - - (5,394) 
Change in provision 
for dismantling cost  (6,428)     (6,428) 
Transfers  1,495 - 30 (1,526) (188) (189) 

At December 31, 2021 1,414,672 32,117 6,595 1,139 2,862 1,457,385 

        
Depreciation       
At January 1, 2020 623,834 12,708 4,558 - - 641,100 
Charge for the year 51,734 925 318 - 200 53,177 
Disposals (140) - - - - (140) 

At December 31, 2020 675,428 13,633 4,876 - 200 694,137 
Charge for the year 58,176 919 333 - 189 59,617 
Disposals (5,394) - - - - (5,394) 

At December 31, 2021 728,210 14,552 5,209 - 389 748,360 

 
Carrying value       
At December 31, 2021 686,462 17,565 1,386 1,139 2,473 709,025 

       
At December 31, 2020 737,343 18,484 1,270 1,650 2,762 761,509 

 
a. Capital work in progress primarily represents expenditure incurred on GT 11 SFC upgrade, Water 

pump overhaul, MED Fapmo pumps and other maintenance capex. 

 

b. Capital spares represents items that are identified by the management to a specific item of property, 

plant and equipment and are intended for replacement at scheduled intervals based on anticipated 

life cycle. These capital spares have not been put to use as at December 31, 2021 and 2020. Critical 

spares include major items and parts critical to be kept on hand to ensure uninterrupted operations of 

the equipment. 

 

c. The depreciation charge has been allocated in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 

income as follows: 

 

December 31, 

2021 

 December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Cost of revenue (note 16) 59,116  52,680 

General and administration expenses (note 17) 501  497 

 59,617  53,177 

 

d. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, all of the above assets were subject to a floating charge that 

forms security for bank borrowings (note 12).  

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 
 

20 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

6.      INVENTORIES 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Spare parts 24,405  26,286 

Chemicals 605  902 

 25,010  27,188 

Less: Provision for obsolete spares (849)  (635) 

 24,161  26,553 

                                                                                                                                                

7.      RECEIVABLES 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Trade receivables (due from EWA)  63,896  207,869 

Less: Provision for impairment  (17,612)  (16,776) 

 46,284  191,093 

Due from related parties (note 20) 102  61 

 46,386  191,154 

 

Trade receivables (due from EWA) relate to sale of electricity and water and are due within 45 days from 

the date of invoice. The Company’s exposures to credit and currency risk related to trade receivables are 

disclosed in note 22. 

 

 

 

Total 

 Neither past 

due nor 

impaired 

 Past due but not impaired 

   

Less than 

90 days  90-120 days 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000)  USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

        
December 31, 2021 46,284  46,284  -  - 

        
December 31, 2020 191,093  77,508  87,099  26,486 

 

Movement in allowance for receivables: 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    
Balance beginning of year 16,776  15,551 

Additions  836  1,225 

Balance end of year 17,612  16,776 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

8.      OTHER ASSETS 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Prepayments and other assets 2,723  2,572 

Advance to suppliers 798  2,221 

 3,521  4,793 

 

Prepayments and other assets include an amount of USD 1,288 thousand (December 31, 2020: USD 

1,508 thousand) which represents un-amortised portion of payment of USD 4,139 thousand to EWA in 

relation to certain commitments of the Company. The benefit of this payment is estimated to accrue over 

a period of remaining life of the PWPA. 

 

 

9.     CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Bank balances  18,086  25,185 

Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 months 22,504  - 

Cash on hand 3  9 

Cash and bank balances 40,593  25,194 

Less: Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 

months (22,504)  - 

Cash and cash equivalents 18,089  25,194 

 

Expected credit losses on balances with banks is not considered material due to short term to expected 

maturity. 

 

 

10.    STATUTORY RESERVE 

 

As required by Bahrain Commercial Companies’ Law 2001, a minimum of 10% of the net profit should be 

transferred to a statutory reserve each year until this reserve is equal to 50% of the paid-up share capital. 

The reserve is not available for distribution except in the circumstances stipulated in the above law. The 

Company has transferred USD 4,783 thousand to the statutory reserve for the year ended December 31, 

2021 (2020: USD 4,316 thousand). 

 

 

11.     PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Balance at the beginning of year 1,201  1,044 

Charge for the year 233  207 

Payments (75)  (50) 

Balance at the end of year 1,359  1,201 

 

 

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 
 

22 

 

                                             NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

12.    BANK BORROWINGS 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Secured bank loans 394,890  459,711 

Less: Transaction costs  (1,172)  (1,554) 

 393,718  458,157 

 

Classified as:    

Non-current liabilities 341,089  409,723 

Current liabilities 52,629  48,434 

 393,718  458,157 

 

The above borrowings represent the amounts drawn by the Company under various floating rate loan 

facilities obtained from a syndicate of banks, which are outstanding as at December 31, 2021. The facilities 

have been obtained by the Company for payment of the purchase consideration to EWA, Phase III 

construction activities and for working capital.  

 

The borrowings are secured by floating charge over the assets of the Company. As at December 31, 2021, 

the ultimate shareholders of the Company had placed a letter of credit in favour of the lenders. The value 

of the letter of credit was equivalent to the next debt service payment due on April 30, 2022. 

 

Since the borrowings are denominated in USD, the Company does not have any significant foreign 

currency risk. For information on interest rate risk and liquidity risk, refer note 22. 

 

Significant terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows: 

 

     December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 

 Currency 

Nominal 

interest rate 

Year of 

maturity 

Original 

amount 

Carrying 

amount 

Original 

amount 

Carrying 

amount 

    USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

        

Senior debt  USD LIBOR+0.55 2026 592,944 208,479 592,944 247,673 

Commercial 

debt USD LIBOR+1.40 2026 401,122 186,411 401,122 212,038 

 

 

The following is the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for bank borrowings arising 

from financing activities: 

 2021  2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

At January 1 459,711  517,920 

Repayment of bank borrowings* (64,821)  (58,209) 

At December 31 394,890  459,711 

 

*Includes partial repayments against bullet amount payable towards the Commercial loan at the end of 

the term for both the years. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

13.    OTHER LIABILITIES  

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Trade payables 1,028  139,351 

Accrued interest 3,875  4,491 

VAT payable -  - 

Other accrued expenses 28,364  33,570 

 33,267  177,412 

 

14.   PROVISION FOR DISMANTLING COST  

 

A provision is made in respect of the Company’s obligation, as per the Land Rights Agreement with the 

MoF (the “agreement”), to dismantle the power plant on completion of the term of the agreement, which is 

30 years from the Scheduled Commercial Operation Date. 

 

Due to long-term nature of the liability, there is a significant uncertainty in estimating the provision for the 

costs that will be incurred. The Company had estimated these costs, assuming that the land will be restored 

using the technology and materials that are available currently (current cost), adjusted with an inflation rate 

estimated over remaining years. The current cost of dismantling was carried at its present value as at 

December 31, 2021 using a discount rate of 7% (2020: 7%). 

 
During the year, the Company carried out a reassessment of this provision, which included hiring a third 
party consultant to review the current estimate of costs. This resulted into revision of the current estimate 
of the dismantling cost liability, to reflect the current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The revision of dismantling cost was determined by the third party 
consultant based on budgetary quotes from contractors, bill of quantity estimation based on plant 
documentation, estimate of similar equipment’s based on consultants knowhow and engineering 
judgement. Due to the revision of the current costs, the estimate of provision for dismantling cost decreased 
by USD 6,428 thousand. As required by IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, 
the decrease in the estimate of provision for dismantling cost has been recognized by decreasing the 
existing provision for dismantling cost with the corresponding impact recognized in the carrying value of 
plant, which is a component of property, plant and equipment. The decrease in the provision for dismantling 
cost will result in changes in the unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling costs and the 
depreciation value over the remaining useful life of plant. 
 
The effect of changes in depreciation expense and unwind of discount on provision for dismantling costs 
in the current and future years is as follows: 

 
 2021  2022  2023  Later 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000)  USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 
        
Depreciation (385)  (385)  (385)  (5,273) 

Unwinding of discount  (450)  (481)  (515)  (12,115) 

 
Movement during the year: 

 2021  2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 
    
Balance at January 1 38,364  35,854 
Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost  2,236  2,510 
Reduction in provision due to change in estimate (Note 5) (6,428)  - 

Balance at December 31 34,172  38,364 
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15.  REVENUE  
 
 

December 31, 
2021 

 December 31, 
2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 
Capacity charge:    

Power 44,257  44,521 

Water 81,613  83,163 

Add: Deferred revenue 3,737  3,747 

 129,607  131,431 

Variable charge:    

Power 10,183  9,864 

Water 4,844  5,131 

 15,027  14,995 

    

Recovery of gas consumed 311,299  318,159 

 455,933  464,585 

 

Capacity charge represents the revenue from capacity sale of electricity and water and is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the PWPA, adjusted for estimated increase in the capacity of water 

generation. An estimate of electricity and water capacity required to be made available to the EWA over 

the PWPA period forms the basis for recognising the capacity charge revenue over the PWPA term.  

 

The variable charge represents revenue from sale of electricity and water and is arrived at based on the 

agreed tariff as per PWPA and the actual units of electricity and water delivered during the year.  

 

The cost of gas consumed in operations is recovered from the EWA as part of sale of electricity and water 

and is based on the computation agreed as per the PWPA. 

 

 

16.    COST OF REVENUE  

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Gas consumed 303,258  313,338 

Depreciation (note 5) 59,116  52,680 

Staff costs (a) 6,172  6,272 

Production and maintenance costs 11,332  10,824 

 379,878  383,114 

  

a) Staff costs are presented net of government grant provided by the Government of the Kingdom of 

Bahrain to lessen the impact of effect of the pandemic (note 27) 
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17.     GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATION EXPENSES  

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Staff costs (a) 2,147  2,130 

Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 7) 836  1,225 

Insurance 1,566  1,166 

Communication and IT expenses 506  516 

Depreciation (note 5) 501  497 

Legal, professional and consultancy fees 420  388 

Crisis management expenses 21  348 

Security & Fire Fighting costs 391  227 

Facility management expenses 183  170 

Travel and transportation costs 108  153 

Staff welfare expenses 150  106 

Trainings and seminars 94  24 

Non-recoverable VAT 23  25 

Other expenses 248  280 

 7,194  7,255 

 

a) Staff costs are presented net of government grant provided by the Government of the Kingdom 

of Bahrain to minimize the impact from the pandemic (note 27). 

 

 

18.    FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES  

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Interest income  14  202 

Finance income  14  202 

    

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred from 

equity  19,144  13,949 

Interest on borrowings 5,122  10,390 

Interest rate swap net expense -  3,788 

Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost (note 14) 2,236  2,510 

Amortisation of loan origination fees  382  421 

Commitment fees 102  69 

Interest income written off 64  - 

 27,050  31,127 

Foreign exchange loss 316  365 

Finance expense 27,366  31,492 

    

Net finance expense 27,352  31,290 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

19.     COMMITMENTS  

 December 31, 

2021 

 December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Long Term Parts and Repairs Agreement  38,008  57,558 

 38,008  57,558 

 

 

20.     RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 

significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties 

include entities over which the Company exercises significant influence, major shareholders, directors and 

key management personnel of the Company. 

 

The transactions and balances with the related parties (major shareholders) included in these financial 

statements are as follows: 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Technical fee and other consultancy charges 334  273 

Staff costs 1,070  1,055 

Reimbursements (145)  (114) 

 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Amounts due from related parties (note 7) 102  61 

 

The transactions and balances with the related parties (affiliates) included in these financial statements 

are as follows: 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Technical fee and other consultancy charges 205  40 
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21.    DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

 

The Company uses interest rate swaps and currency forward contracts as part of its interest rate and 

foreign currency risk management respectively. These derivatives qualify and have been designated by 

the Company as cash flow accounting hedge as per the requirements IFRS 9 Financial instruments. Fair 

value of interest rate swaps agreements and currency forward contracts are estimated based on the 

prevailing interest and forward rates of the related foreign currencies respectively.  

 

The Company has entered into Interest Rate Swaps ("IRSs") transactions to hedge the interest rate 

exposure of its term loans as follows: 

 

The bank borrowings (refer to note 12) bears interest at USD-LIBOR plus applicable margins. The 

Company has entered into "pay fixed, receive variable" IRS agreements with various counterparties. 

 

The details of such agreements and contracts outstanding as at the reporting dates are provided in the 

following table: 

 

 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 

 

Notional 

amount Fair value 

Notional 

amount Fair value 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

     

Interest rate swaps 352,786 (38,212) 410,243 (64,599) 

Currency forward contracts 20,141 (4,153) 30,274 (4,536) 

 372,927 (42,365) 440,517 (69,135) 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Non-current 24,439  48,388 

Current 17,926  20,747 

 42,365  69,135 

    

Effective portion 42,365  69,135 

 

The contractual maturity analysis of the interest rate swap and currency forward contracts are included 

as part of liquidity risk information in note 22.  

 

Movement in hedging reserve and hedging liability during the year 

 

 2021  2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Balance as at January 1 (69,135)  (66,080) 

Net fair value loss on IRSs (a) 26,770  (3,055) 

Balance as at December 31 (42,365)  (69,135) 

    

(a) Other comprehensive income 26,770  (3,055) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

22.     FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Overview 

Financial instruments 

Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets of the Company 

include cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. Financial liabilities of the Company include 

bank borrowings, interest rate swaps (derivative financial instruments), provision for dismantling cost, 

trade payable, due to contractors and certain other current liabilities. 

 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from use of its financial instruments: 

 

 credit risk 

 liquidity risk 

 market risk 

 

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s 

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management 

of capital. The note also presents certain quantitative disclosures in addition to the disclosures 

throughout the financial statements. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 

the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established 

to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 

to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 

to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training 

and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 

environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counter-party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 

cause the Company to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily on cash and 

cash equivalents and receivables.  

 

The Company limits the credit risk on bank balances by ensuring that these are maintained with banks 

having high credit ratings. 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

 

Trade receivables are due from EWA, which is part of the government of the Kingdom of Bahrain. The 

receivables from EWA represent revenue billed based on the PWPA terms. Credit risk on cash and cash 

equivalents is limited since these are maintained with bank having appropriate credit rating. 

 

 

 

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Cash and bank balances 40,593  25,194 

Receivables 46,386  191,154 

 86,979  216,348 
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Breakdown of receivables: 

 

 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 

financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages its 

liquidity risk, by ensuring that banks and other facilities are adequate to meet its working capital 

requirements. 

 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments: 

 

December 31, 2021 
Carrying  

amount 

Contractual 

cash flows 

6 months 

or less 

6-12 

months 

1-2 

years 

2-5 

years 

More than 

5 years 

Non-derivative 

financial liabilities        

Bank borrowings 394,890 416,893 26,692 31,671 63,291 295,239 - 

Trade payables 1,028 1,028 1,028 - - - - 

Capital commitments 38,008 38,008 9,069 9,262 10,772 8,905 - 

Derivative financial 

liabilities        

Interest rate swaps 38,213 38,836 8,719 7,277 10,838 12,002 - 

Currency forward 

contracts  4,152 4,375 1,086 971 1,547 771 - 

Total 476,291 499,140 46,594 49,181 86,448 

 

316,917 - 

 

December 31, 2020 
Carrying  

amount 

Contractual 

cash flows 

6 months 

or less 

6-12 

months 

1-2 

years 

2-5 

years 

More than 

5 years 

Non-derivative 

financial liabilities        

Bank borrowings 459,711 482,385 24,694 29,516 57,955 206,549 163,671 

Trade payables 164,820 164,820 164,820 - - - - 

Capital commitments 57,558 57,558 9,996 6,255 18,610 22,697 - 

Derivative financial 

liabilities        

Interest rate swaps 64,599 65,035 9,955 9,227 16,979 27,900 974 

Currency forward 

contracts  4,536 4,638 788 841 1,452 1,557 - 

Total 751,224 774,436 210,253 45,839 94,996 258,703 164,645 

  

 

December 31, 

2021  

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000)  USD (‘000) 

    

Current  46,486  77,658 

Overdue 17,512  130,272 

Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 7 & 25) (17,612)  (16,776) 

 46,386  191,154 
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Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market factors, such as currency rates, interest rates and equity 

prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 

of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 

parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. 

 

(i) Interest rate risk  

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Company’s earnings will be affected as a result of fluctuations in the 

value of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk 

is limited to its interest bearing demand deposits with banks and bank borrowings. 

 

The Company has hedged a significant portion of its interest rate risk on bank borrowings by entering 

into interest rate swap agreements. Since the deposits with banks are of short term nature and realisable 

at the values at which carried in the books, interest rate fluctuations do not have significant impact on 

the carrying value of these deposits. 

 

The effective interest rate on bank borrowings during the year was 5.66% (December 31, 2020: 5.74%). 

 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments 

was: 

 

 Carrying amount 

 

December 31, 

2021 

December 31, 

2020 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

Fixed rate instruments   

Cash and bank balances 40,593 25,194 

Variable rate instruments   

Bank borrowings 394,890 459,711 

Interest rate swaps 38,213 64,599 

 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date and in average interest rates prevailing 

during the year would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The 

analysis is performed on the same basis as used for 2020. 

 

 

 

 Profit or loss Equity 

 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 

 Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

December 31, 2021     

Bank borrowings (4,408) 942 - - 

Interest rate swap 3,933 (3,933) 8,184 (8,520) 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) (475) (2,991) 8,184 (8,520) 

     

December 31, 2020     

Bank borrowings (5,061) 4,295 - - 

Interest rate swap 4,506 (4,506) 12,606 (13,222) 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) (555) (211) 12,606 (13,222) 

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 
 

31 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

 

The Company is exposed to the following interest rate benchmarks within its hedge accounting 

relationships, which are subject to interest rate benchmark reform: USD LIBOR.  

 

The Company has closely monitored the market and the output from the various industry working groups 

managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates. This includes announcements made by the 

LIBOR regulators. The regulators have made clear that, at the end of 2021, it will no longer seek to 

persuade, or compel, banks to submit LIBORs. 

 

In response to the announcements, the Company is supported by Shareholder’s team formed for the 

purpose of managing the transition.  An international law firm is appointed which will undertake a review 

of the relevant documentation to understand the impact and deliver on an action plan to undertake the 

transition from IBORs to the risk-free-rates (RFR) with appropriate adjustments before USD LIBOR 

cessation date of June 2023. The project will be carried out in two phases (i) Phase 1 (Due Diligence 

Phase) and Phase 2 (Implementation Phase).  

 

Based on the transition plan, the Company expects completion of the Phase 1 in 2022-Q1 followed by 

the presentation of the outcome the proposed roadman to the Board by 2022-Q2. Once the plan is 

approved, the Company expects implementation (Phase 2) will take time of 7-8 months. 

 

Refer note 21 for details of the hedging instruments and hedged items in scope of the IFRS 9 

amendments due to interest rate benchmark reform, by hedge type. The terms of the hedged items listed 

match those of the corresponding hedging instruments. 

 

The Company will continue to apply the amendments to IFRS 9 until the uncertainty arising from the 

interest rate benchmark reforms with respect to the timing and the amount of the underlying cash flows 

that the company is exposed to ends. The Company has assumed that this uncertainty will not end until 

the Company’s contracts that reference LIBORs are amended to specify the date on which the interest 

rate benchmark will be replaced, the cash flows of the alternative benchmark rate and the relevant 

spread adjustment.  

 

(ii) Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the Company’s earnings will be affected as a result of fluctuations in currency 

exchange rates. 

 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on liabilities for commitments under the LTPRA, bank borrowings 

and certain purchases denominated in foreign currencies. The majority of the foreign currency payments 

are in US dollars, except for payments under LTPRA. The Company has effectively hedged approximately 

70% of its currency rate risk relating to its commitments under the LTPRA by way of entering into currency 

forward contracts. The Company perceives the currency risk, on the transactions denominated in Bahraini 

Dinars, to be low, as the US dollar is pegged against the Bahraini Dinar. 

 

Exposure to currency risk 

The Company’s significant exposure to currency risk was as follows: 

 *cash flows to occur over 4 years 

 

 

 

 

 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 

 USD (‘000) Euro (‘000) USD (‘000) Euro (‘000) 

Estimated cost of LTPRA * (28,771) (19,689) (43,249) (29,571) 

Notional amount of the currency forward 

contracts (20,140) (13,782) (30,274) (20,700) 
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Sensitivity analysis for currency risk 

A 10 percent strengthening (weakening) of the USD against the Euro at December 31 would have 

increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes 

that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

 

 

 

Capital management 

The Board’s policy is to maintain investor, lender and Government confidence and to be able to meet 

the requirements of the PWPA. The Company is currently significantly leveraged. The Board of Directors 

monitors that there is sufficient capital to ensure smooth working of the current operations.  

 

The Company maintains a project lifetime financial model which is reviewed and updated on a six 

monthly basis. The management uses this model to plan cash flows and ensures that the Company 

continues to meet debt covenants. The Company has complied with all other externally imposed capital 

requirements throughout the year. 

 

 

23.       FAIR VALUES  

 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

 

Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption that an enterprise is a going concern without any 

intention or need to liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on 

adverse terms. The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities, presented in the statement of 

financial position, are set out in the table below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Profit or loss Equity 

 10% 10% 10% 10% 

 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

December 31, 2021     

Notional amount of the currency 

forward contracts 1,580  (1,580) - - 

Net result 1,580 (1,580) - - 

     

December 31, 2020     

Notional amount of the currency 

forward contracts - - 2,574 (2,574) 

Net result - - 2,574 (2,574) 
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Having regard to the nature of these financial assets and liabilities, their carrying value approximates the fair 

value. 

 

At fair value Amortised cost 

Total carrying 

Amount 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

December 31, 2021    

Receivables - 46,386 46,386 

Cash and cash equivalents - 40,593 40,593 

 - 86,979 86,979 

    

Bank borrowings  394,890 394,890 

Other financial liabilities 42,365 34,626 76,991 

 42,365 429,516 471,881 

 

 

At fair value Amortised cost 

Total carrying 

Amount 

 USD (‘000) USD (‘000) USD (‘000) 

December 31, 2020    

Receivables - 191,154 191,154 

Cash and cash equivalents - 25,194 25,194 

 - 216,348 216,348 

    

Bank borrowings - 459,711 459,711 

Other financial liabilities 69,135 178,613 247,748 

 69,135 638,324 707,459 

 

Fair value hierarchy  

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 

inputs used in making the measurements: 

 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

 Level 2: valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. as 

derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active 

markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are 

considered less active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly 

observable from market data. 

 Level 3: valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments 

where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs 

have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued 

based on quoted market prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or 

assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments. 

 

The table below analyses assets and liabilities, measured at fair value as at the end of the year, by level 

in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized: 

 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 Total 

 

December 31, 2021     

Derivative financial instruments - 42,365 -      42,365 

 

 
 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 Total 

 

December 31, 2020     

Derivative financial instruments - 69,135 - 69,135 

 

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 
 

34 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

 

 

Valuation technique of forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps 

Market comparison technique: The fair value is based on the broker quotes. Similar contracts are traded 

in an active market and quotes reflect the actual transaction in similar instrument. 

 

24.      APPROPRIATIONS  

 

The Annual General Meeting was held in May 2021.  The Company is obligated to transfer the excess 

cash flow as the mandatory prepayment in respect of the Bullet Repayment under the Commercial Bank 

Facility agreement and hence, no cash dividend was declared for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

 
25.     CONTINGENCY  

 

The Company has received dispute notices and correspondence against their invoices to Electricity and 

Water Authority, Kingdom of Bahrain on the revenue components, primarily on water revenues related to 

the capacity shortfall and delivery of non-conforming water, which is defined as water that fails to conform 

to the Potable Water Delivery Specification as described in the Power and Water Purchase Agreement 

(“PWPA”). 

  

A total amount of USD 17,512 thousand has already been deducted from the payment of invoices billed 

as of December 31, 2021, which in the opinion of the Company, is not fully in line with the PWPA. The 

Company is assertive of recovering the outstanding receivable partially and is continuing its effort to resolve 

the disputed matters amicably with the off-taker. Nevertheless, as a matter of prudence, the Company has 

made a provision for already deducted amounts in full and other potential deductions of revenue charges. 

 

26.     COMPARATIVES 

 

Certain prior period amounts have been regrouped to conform to the current period’s presentation. Such 

regrouping did not affect previously reported profit for the period or total equity. 

 

27.     IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

 

The coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic has spread across various geographies globally, causing 

disruption to business and economic activities. COVID-19 has brought about uncertainties in the global 

economic environment. The fiscal and monetary authorities, both domestic and international, have 

announced various support measures across the globe to counter possible adverse implications. 

 

While the Company’s financial performance was not significantly affected at the current reporting date, 

the uncertainties caused by COVID-19, and the volatility in prices for chemicals & spares required the 

Company to closely monitor the situation to manage and assess its financial performance continually. 

 

Government support:  

The Government of Kingdom of Bahrain has announced various economic stimulus programmes to 

support businesses in these challenging times. The Company has received benefits in the form of 

partial reimbursement of salaries amounting to USD 247 thousand (2020: USD 680 thousand) of all 

insured Bahraini employees from the Unemployment Fund. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
for the year ended December 31. 2022 USO '000 

In accordance with Article 286 of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001 (and subsequent 

amendments), I have the pleasure of presenting the Company's audited financial statements (pages 6 to 

33) for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Financial hiahliahts 2022 2021 

Revenue 447,634 455,933 

Gross profit 73,646 76,055 

Profit for the year 41,876 47,826 

Total eQuity 406,515 327,634 

Directors 

The following Directors served during the year ended December 31, 2022 and disclosure of remuneration 

to members of Board of Directors and Executive Management. 

First: Independent Directors 

None 

Second: Non-Executive Directors 
�war Svahrin Bin Abdul Aiib -Chairman 
Frederic Michel Nicolas Claux (i) 
ames Philio Morson 
mtonio Di Cecca (ii) 
�ohd Nazersham Bin Mansor 
ao Leng Khim 

Naaulusamv Raiendran 
Laurent Ravmond Louis Furedi (iii) 
Luc Christiaan E.Dietvorst (iv) 
Mohd Helmy Bin Ibrahim 
Koii Makita 

hinva Nakamura 
omaz Henriaue Guadagnin (v) 
arah Danielle M Kiriluk (vi) 
hird: Executive Directors 

None 

Note: All amounts are in Bahraini Dinars 

(i) Resigned w.e.f September 5, 2022
(ii) Resigned w.e.f March 28, 2022
(iii) Appointed w.e.f March 28, 2022
(iv) Resigned w.e.f September 5, 2022
(v) Appointed w.e.f September 6, 2022
(vi) Appointed w.e.f September 6, 2022

1 

• I· - - . __ l • -I - -
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT (continued) 
for the year ended December 31. 2022 

Remuneration and benefits paid to Executive Management: 

USO '000 

Salaries, benefits and other allowances paid to executive management are disclosed as follows; 

Remuneration of top executives 
(Chief Executive Officer and 441,422 
Chief Financial Officer) * 

Note: All amounts are in Bahraini Dinars 

- �
Aggregate 
AmQunt 

441,422 

* Executive management consists of Executive Managing Director, Finance Director & Production Director

Representations and audit 

The Company's activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been conducted in accordance 
with the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law 2001 (and subsequent amendments), and other relevant 
statutes of the Kingdom of Bahrain. 

There have been no events subsequent to December 31, 2022, which would in any way invalidate the 
financial statements on pages 6 to 33. 

The Company has maintained proper, complete accounting records and these, together with all other 
information and explanations, have been made freely available to the auditors - Deloitte & Touche, who 
have signified their willingness to continue in office for the next accounting year. 

February 23, 2023 
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Deloitte 

To the Shareholders 

Hidd Power Company B.S.C.(C) 

Hidd, Kingdom of Bahrain 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

Deloitte & Toudle 

Middle East 

United Tower, Bahrain Bay 
Manama, P.O. Box 421 
Kingdom of Bahrain 

Tel: +973 1 721 4490 
Fax: +973 1 721 4550 
www.deloitte.com 
C.R. 18670 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hidd Power Company B.S.C.(C) (the "Company"), which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Company as at December 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 

with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the Company's financial statements in the Kingdom of Bahrain, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Chairman's report which 

we obtained prior to the date of this auditors' report. The other information does not include the financial statements and 

our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditors' report, 

we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 

to report in this regard. 
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Deloitte. 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 

IFRS, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the Board of Directors;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

■ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether

the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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Deloitte. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED) 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

1) As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law of 2001 (and subsequent amendments), we report that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the financial statements are in agreement therewith;

b) the financial information contained in the Chairman's Report is consistent with the financial statements;

c) Nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Company has, during the year, breached any of

the applicable provisions of the Commercial Companies Law (and subsequent amendments), or the terms of its

Memorandum and Articles of Association that would have a material adverse effect on its business or its financial

position at December 31, 2022; and

d) satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by the Board in response to all our requests.

2) As required by the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in their letter dated January 30, 2020 in respect of the requirements

of Article 8 of Section 2 of Chapter 1 of the Corporate Governance Code, we report that the Company has:

a) a corporate governance officer; and
b) a Board approved written guidance and procedures for corporate governance.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE-MIDDLE EAST 
Partner Registration No. 256 
Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain 

February 23, 2023 

5 

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT DECEMBER 31

1 
2022 

Note 2022 

USD '000 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 5 682,337 

Advance payments for long term parts and repairs 19,683 
Derivative financial instruments 21 291 

Total non-current assets 702,311 

Current assets 
Derivative financial instruments 21 390 
Inventories 6 22,269 

Receivables 7 23,735 

Other assets 8 3,075 

Cash and bank balances 9 35,606 

Total current assets 85,075 

Total assets 787,386 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Share capital 1 140,663 
Statutory reserve 10 43,794 
Cash flow hedge reserve 21 (5,360) 
Retained earnings 227,418 

Total equity 406,515 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Bank borrowings 12 252,491 
Derivative financial instruments 21 4,469 
Deferred revenue 14,331 
Provision for dismantling cost 14 36,564 
Provision for employees' end-of-service benefits 11 1,507 

Total non-current liabilities 309,362 

Current liabilities 
Bank borrowings 12 57,594 
Derivative financial instruments 21 1,572 
Deferred revenue 3,737 
Other liabilities 13 8,606 

Total current liabilities 71,509 

Total liabilities 380,871 

Total equity and liabilities 787,386 

The financial statements consisting of pages 6 to 33 were approv d by the Board of 
23, 2023. 

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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2021 

USD '000 

709,025 
30,634 

739,659 

24,161 
46,386 

3,521 
40,593 

114,661 

854,320 

140,663 
39,606 

(42,365) 
189,730 

327,634 

341,089 
24,439 
18,068 
34,172 
1,359 

419,127 

52,629 
17,926 

3,737 
33,267 

107,559 

526,686 
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1 
I 

1 

• 

HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.{Cl 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Revenue 

Cost of revenue 

Gross profit 

General and administration expenses 

Other income 

Operating profit 

Finance income 

Finance expense 

Net finance expense 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow 
hedges 
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred 

Note 

15 

16 

17 

18 

18 

to profrt or loss 18 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred 
to carrying amount of a non-financial asset 

Total other comprehensive income of the year 
Total profit and other comprehensive income for the 
year 

• 

Tomaz Henrique Guadagnin 
Director 

2022 
USO '000 

447,634 

(373,988) 

73,646 

(8,225) 

21 
65,442 

509 

(24,075) 

(23,566) 

41,876 

19,080 

15,951 

1,974 

37,005 

78,881 

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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2021 
USO '000 

455,933 

(379,878) 

76,055 

(7,194) 

6,317 

75,178 

14 

(27,366) 

(27,352) 

47,826 

6,023 

19,144 

1,603 

26,770 

74,596 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B_.S.C,Jg 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EgUITY 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1
20_22 

Statutory Cash flow 
Share ca�ital reserve hedge reserve 

USO '000 USO '000 USO '000 

Balance at January 1, 2021 140,663 34,823 (69,135) 
Profit for the year - -

Other comprehensive income: 

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - 6,023 

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or 
loss (note 18) 19,144 
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the 
carrying amount of a non-financial asset 1,603 
Total comprehensive income for the year 26,770 
Transfer to statutory reserve - 4,783 -

Balance at December 31, 2021 140,663 39,606 (42,365) 
Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income: 

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 19,080 
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or 
loss (note 18) 15,951 
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the 
carrying amount of a non-financial asset - 1,974 

Total comprehensive income for the year 
37,005 

Transfer to statutory reserve - 4,188 
Balance at December 31, 2022 140,663 43,794 {5,360} 

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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Retained 
earnings Total 
USO '000 USO '000 

146,687 253,038 
47,826 47,826 

6,023 

- 19,144 

- 1,603 
47,826 74,596 
(4,783} 

189,730 327,634 
41,876 41,876 

19,080 

15,951 

- 1,974 
41,876 78,881 

(4,188} 
__ 227,4_18 �06,515 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.{C) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 
2022 

Note 2022 
USO '000 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit for the year 41,876 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 5 61,317 

Net movement in slow-moving / obsolete inventory 6 2,059 

Impairment allowance on trade receivables 7 1,198 

Amortisation of upfront fee 18 343 

Amortisation of TDS settlement 16 221 

Provision for employees' end of service benefits 11 219 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15) 

Insurance claim 

Finance cost, net 20,488 

Deferred revenue (3,737) 

Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost 14 2,392 

Operating profit before changes in working capital 126,361 

Changes in working capital: 

(Increase} I decrease in inventories (167) 

Decrease in receivables 21,453 

Decrease in other assets 225 

Increase in advance payments for long term parts and repairs (17,477) 

Decrease in other liabilities (23,966) 

Cash generated from operations 106,429 

Payment of employees' end of service benefits 11 (71} 
Net cash generated from operating activities 106,358 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Decrease I (increase) in fixed deposits 1,382 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (5,941) 

Net movement in capital work in progress and capital 
spares (260) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 

Proceeds from insurance claim 

Net cash used in investing activities (4,804} 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of bank borrowings 12 (83,976) 

Finance cost, net (21,183) 

Net cash used in financing activities (105,159} 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,605) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 18,089 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 14,484 

The attached notes form an integral part of these financial statements 
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2021 
USO '000 

47,826 

59,617 

677 

836 

382 

221 

233 
(3) 

(6,137) 
24,416 

(3,737) 

2,236 

126,567 

1,714 

143,932 

1,052 

(16,988) 
(143,529) 

112,748 

(75} 
112,673 

(22,504) 

(12,647) 

(914) 
3 

6,137 

(29,925} 

(64,821) 

(25,032} 
(89,853} 

(7,105) 

25,194 
18,089 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.{C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

1 STATUS AND ACTIVITIES 

Hidd Power Company BSC (c) (the "Company") is a closed Joint Stock Company incorporated in the 

Kingdom of Bahrain on January 21, 2006 under commercial registration (CR) number 59322 issued by the 

Ministry of Industry, Commerce, and Tourism. 

The Company has an authorised share capital of USO 150,000,000, comprising 30,000,000 shares of USO 

5 each and issued and paid up share capital of USD 140,663,100 divided into 28, 132,620 shares of USO 

5 each held as follows: 

Name of the Shareholder Number of shares 

Malakoff Summit Hidd Holding Company Limited 19,692,834 

Kahrabel FZE 8,439,786 

The Company commenced operations on January 22, 2006, upon entering into an Asset Transfer 

Agreement (the "agreement") with the Ministry of Finance of the Government of Bahrain ("MoF") and the 
Electricity and Water Authority of the Government of Bahrain ("EWA"), to buy the Al Hidd Power Plant 

("power plant") and related inventories, and operates the power plant on a build, own, operate basis. 

The Company also entered into a power and water purchase agreement ("PWPA") with the EWA to sell all 

the output of the power plant to the EWA for a period of 20 years from the scheduled commercial operation 

date - May 18, 2008. Subsequent to that, the Company also concluded the following agreements relating 

to the power plant: 

• Land Rights Agreement with the MoF
• Natural Gas Agreement with Tatweer Petroleum (previously with Bahrain Petroleum Company

("BAPCO"))

Subsequent to the commencement of its operations, the Company carried out construction of the Phase 

Ill project, a water distillation plant, as per the pre-requisite of the PWPA. This project was completed on 

achievement of Commercial Operations Date ("COD") as on May 18, 2008. 

The current PWPA term is ending in November 2027. EWA has expressed their interest in extending the 

current PWPA term and indicated several options for the extension including adding new facilities for the 

water plant. The Company has potential chance of getting the extension given the fact that existing facilities 

can be offered with competitive tariff rates against green field projects. The Company is currently engaged 

with EWA's consultant on reviewing the various options which can bring the desired value to the 

stakeholders. The Company has assured their commitment to successfully perform the extension project 

for the benefit of the people of the Kingdom of Bahrain, EWA, and its stakeholders. 

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are for the year ended December 31, 2022 and have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'} and the requirements of Bahrain 

Commercial Companies Law 2001. 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except for the measurement 

at fair value of derivative financial instruments. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The functional 

currency of the Company is Bahraini Dinars ('BHD') and the financial statements are presented in United 

States Dollar ('USO'). The translation difference between the functional currency and the presentation 

currency is insignificant. All financial information presented in USD has been rounded off to the nearest 

thousand. 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 

form the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not 

readily apparent from other sources. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that 

period, or in the period of the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future 

periods. 

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the 

financial statements and in arriving at estimates with a risk of material adjustment in the following period 

include the estimate of total revenue over the lease period (note 4), fair value of derivative financial 

instruments (note 21 ), useful lives of property, plant and equipment (note 4), impairment of non-financial 

assets (note 4), net cost of dismantling (note 14) and amortisation of costs incurred under the Long Term 

Parts & Repairs Agreements (LTPRA) (note 4). 

Going concern 

Management has assessed the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that 

the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 

Board of Directors of the Company is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant 

doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements 

continue to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS (IFRSs)

3.1 New and revised Standards applied with no material impact on the financial statements 

In the current year, the Company has applied the below amendments to IFRS Standards and 

Interpretations issued by the Board that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after January 

1, 2022. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported 

in these financial statements. 

• Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations Reference to the Conceptual Framework:

The Company has adopted the amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations for the first

time in the current year. The amendments update IFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018

Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework. They also add to IFRS 3 a requirement

that, for obligations within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets, an acquirer applies IAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition date a present

obligation exists as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of IFRIC

21 Levies, the acquirer applies IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives

rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition date.
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

• Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment related to proceeds before intended

use:

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment for the

first time in the current year. The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is

available for use, i.e. proceeds while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary

for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Consequently, an

entity recognises such sales proceeds and related costs in profit or loss. The entity measures

the cost of those items in accordance with IAS 2 Inventories.

The amendments also clarify the meaning of 'testing whether an asset is functioning properly'.

IAS 16 now specifies this as assessing whether the technical and physical performance of the

asset is such that it is capable of being used in the production or supply of goods or services,

for rental to others, or for administrative purposes.

If not presented separately in the statement of comprehensive income, the financial statements

shall disclose the amounts of proceeds and cost included in profit or loss that relate to items

produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities, and which line item(s} in the

statement of comprehensive income include{s) such proceeds and cost.

• Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Uabilities and Contingent Assets related to

Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfilling a Contract:

The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 37 for the first time in the current year.

The amendments specify that the cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate

directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract consist of both the incremental

costs of fulfilling that contract ( examples would be direct labour or materials) and an allocation

of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts ( an example would be the allocation of

the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the

contract}.

• Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards 2018-2020 Cycle: The Annual

Improvements include amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41.

There has been no material impact on the financial statements of the Company upon adoption of the 

above amended standards. 

3.2 New and revised standards issued but not yet effective 

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the Company has not applied the following 

new and revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective: 

• IFRS 17 Insurance contracts - effective from January 1, 2023

• Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture - effective date not yet decided

• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Noncurrent - effective from January 1, 2023

• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2

Making Materiality Judgements - Disclosure of Accounting Policies - effective from January 1,

2023.
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

• Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -
Definition of Accounting Estimates - effective from January 1, 2023

• Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction - effective from January 1, 2023

• Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - effective from
January 1, 2024

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the above Standards will have a material impact on the 
Company's financial statements in future periods. 

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting polices applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company and are consistent with 
those used in the previous year. 

Revenue recognition 
The PWPA arrangement with the EWA constitutes a lease under IFRS 16. The revenue from capacity sale 
of electricity and water (lease income) is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease, 
adjusted for estimated increase in the capacity of water generation. An estimate of electricity and water 
capacity required to be made available to the EWA over the lease period as per the PWPA forms the basis 
for recognising the revenue over the lease term. Excess of amount of revenue billed to the EWA over the 
amount of revenue estimated for the reporting period is recognised as deferred revenue. 

The variable charge for sale of electricity and water is recognised as income when the electricity and water 
is delivered. The variable charge is arrived at based on the agreed tariff as per PWPA and the actual units 
of electricity and water delivered during the year. 

Gas consumed in operations is recovered from the EWA as part of sale of electricity and water. The actual 
· amount of gas recovered by the company is recognized as revenue on the basis of the computation agreed
as per the PWP A

Interest income on deposits with banks is recognised, as finance income in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the deposit 

Borrowings costs 
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. The amount of borrowing cost 
eligible for capitalisation on any qualifying asset is determined as actual borrowing cost incurred on the 
borrowings during the period less any investment income on temporary investment of those borrowings. 
Other borrowing costs are recognised as finance expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and allowances for 
impairment, if any. Historical cost includes purchase price of the items and expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items except in case of production facilities, which also includes 
estimated cost of dismantling accounted at amortised cost basis. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item or repairs can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial period 
in which they are incurred. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

One of the components of subsequent costs that are capitalised includes the costs related to the Long­

Term Parts and Repairs Agreement (LTPRA) entered into by the Company with a service provider. The 

costs incurred under this agreement are primarily for C-inspections (overhauling/inspection) of the gas 

turbines of the Company and for the cost of parts replaced/ refurbished as result of the 

overhauling/inspection of the gas turbines. The payments made under the L TPRA are initially recorded as 

advance payments till the time C-inspection of a turbine is performed, upon which, average cost of C­

inspection per turbine is transferred from the advance payments to the Property, Plant and Equipment; any 

shortfall in the advance payments is accrued as a liability, which represents cost of service received up to 

the date of C-inspection. 

The cost of C-inspection capitalised as part of the cost of plant is depreciated over a period up to the next 

C-inspection of the gas turbine i.e. over 4 to 5 years.

The average cost of C-inspection per turbine is estimated by the management by estimating the total cost 

under L TPRA that includes lump-sum charges paid at the onset of the agreement and variable charges, 

which will be paid over the life of the L TPRA, based on the Estimated Operating Hours (EOH) of the 

turbines over the life of the L TPRA. Under the L TPRA, the Company transferred certain parts to the service 

provider. The book value of those parts on the date of such transfer has been considered as a component 

of the total cost of L TPRA. This total cost is spread over the total number of C-inspections agreed to be 

carried out under the L TPRA. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost of property, plant and equipment to 

their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Asset category Estimated useful lives of the assets 

Production facilities: 
Plant acquired from EWA as per the PWPA 382 months 

Plant constructed (Phase Ill) 360 months 

C-inspection (under L TPRA) 48 to 60 months 

Building and building improvements 240 to 382 months 

Other assets: 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment's 12 to 60 months 

Information technology assets 36 months 

All depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The total 

amount of depreciation is classified into cost of revenue and general and administration expenses based 

on the use of the related property, plant and equipment's for operational and administrative purposes, 

respectively. Capital spares are depreciated only when they are in use. Critical spares include major 

items and parts critical to be kept on hand to ensure uninterrupted operations, and are depreciated with 

a useful life of 8 years (till the end of PWPA agreement). 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 

date. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 

included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Capital work in progress is carried at an amount, which represents the value of the work completed as at 

the reporting date. 
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Government grant 

HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the 
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognised 

in profit or loss in the period in which. they become receivable. 

Provision for dismantling cost 

Provision for dismantling cost represents present value of the best estimate of the expenditure to be 

incurred to settle obligation under the land right agreement. The provision is recognized on amortised cost 

basis. 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 

exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the asset. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications 

that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 

change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only 
to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 

been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the 

weighted average principle, and includes expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing 
them to their existing location and condition. Replacement price of inventory less estimated cost for 

disposal is estimated net realisable value of inventory. 

Receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less 

provision for impairment. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balance with banks that are on demand. 

Other liabilities 

Other liabilities include liabilities that are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or 

services received, whether billed by the supplier or not. 

Provision 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past 

event, and the cost to settle the obligations are both probable and able to be reasonably measured. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.{C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Employees' end of service benefits 

Pensions and other social benefits for Bahraini employees are covered by the General Organisation for 

Social Insurance scheme, which is a defined contribution scheme under IAS 19 - Employee Benefits, to 

which employees and employers contribute monthly on a fixed-percentage-of-salaries basis. 

Expatriate employees are entitled to leaving indemnities payable under the Bahrain Labour Law 2012, 

based on length of service and final salary and other allowances paid. Provision for this unfunded 

commitment, which represents a defined benefit scheme under IAS 19 - Employee Benefits, has been 

made by calculating the notional liability had all employees left at the reporting date. 

Foreign currency transactions 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The functional currency of 

the Company is Bahraini Dinars and the financial statements are presented in United States Dollar ('USO'). 

The translation difference between the functional currency and the presentation currency is insignificant. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to USO at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date 

of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date 

are translated into USO at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at that date. 

Foreign exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such foreign currency transactions and from 

the translation of monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 

year end exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

Financial instruments 

(i) Recognition and initial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 

financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 

the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial 

assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. 

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortised cost; FVOCI or FVPL. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes 

its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are 

reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 
• it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
• its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 

amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses 

and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the 

profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 

classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such 

on initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains 

and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in 

profit or loss. 

Refer note 21 for financial liabilities designated as hedging instruments. 

(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 

which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 

and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial 

position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In 

these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified 

and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability 

based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and 
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised 
in profit or loss. 

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the statement of

financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off

the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously.

(v) Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivative financial instruments are contracts, the value of which is derived from one or more underlying

financial instruments and include interest rate swaps and currency forward contracts. These are held to

hedge the Company's foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures.
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

The derivative financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position at fair value, 
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

On initial designation of the hedge, the Company formally documents the relationship between the 
hedging instrument and hedged item, including the risk management objectives and strategy in 
undertaking the hedge transaction, together with the methods that will be used to assess the 

effectiveness of the hedging relationship. The Company makes an assessment, both at the inception of 
the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, whether the hedging instruments are expected 
to be "highly effective" in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the respective hedged 
items during the period for which the hedge is designated. For a cash flow hedge of a forecast 
transaction, the transaction should be highly probable to occur and should present an exposure to 
variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect reported net income. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are 
accounted for as described below. Fair values are estimated based on the prevailing market rates of 
interest and related foreign currency exchange rates. Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial 
instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and that prove to be highly effective in 
relation to the hedged risk are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in a hedge 

reserve as a separate component of equity. The corresponding effect of the unrealised gains or losses 
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised as other assets or other liabilities in the 
statement of financial position. The effective portion of the gain or loss on derivative instruments 
recognised in other comprehensive income is removed and included in profit or loss in the same period 
as the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss under the same line item in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income as the hedged item. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair 
value on derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting or are determined to be 
ineffective are recognised directly in the profit or loss. 

(vi) Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for bank balances 
for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) 
has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. When 
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition 
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant 
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information 
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment including 
forward-looking information. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has 

increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due. 

Measurement of ECLs 
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present 
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). Presentation of allowance 
for ECL in the statement of financial position Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised 

cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. 

Write-off 
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable 
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 
2022 

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Capital Capital spares 
Production Building and Other work in / critical 

facilities im�rovements assets �rogress s�ares Total 
USO ('000) USO ('000) USD ('000) USO ('000) USO ('000) USO ('000) 

Cost 
At January 1 , 2021 1,412,771 32,117 6,146 1,650 2,962 1,455,646 

Additions 12,228 419 1,015 88 13,750 
Disposal (5,394) (5,394) 
Transfers 1,495 30 (1,526) (188) (189)
Change in provision 
for dismantling cost (6,428} (6,428} 

At December 31, 2021 1,414,672 32,117 6,595 1,139 2,862 1,457,385 

Additions 33,946 423 501 72 34,942 
Disposal (24) (24)
Transfers 1,053 74 {1,127} {313} (313}

At December 31, 2022 1,449,671 32,117 7,092 513 2,597 1,491,990 

Depreciation 

At January 1, 2021 675,428 13,633 4,876 200 694,137 

Charge for the year 58,176 919 333 189 59,617 

Disposals {5,394} {5,394} 
At December 31, 2021 728,210 14,552 5,209 389 748,360 

Charge for the year 59,758 1,014 387 158 61,317 

Disposal (24) (24)

At December 31, 2022 787,968 15,566 5,596 523 809,653

Carrying value 

At December 31, 2022 661,703 16,551 1,496 513 2,074 682,337 

At December 31, 2021 686,462 17,565 1,386 1,139 2,473 709,025 

a. Capital work in progress primarily represents expenditure incurred on Phase 3 sea water pump 1
overhaul, ST28 control valve and GT 22 C inspection spares and other maintenance capex.

b. Capital spares represents items that are identified by the management to a specific item of property,
plant and equipment and are intended for replacement at scheduled intervals based on anticipated
life cycle. These capital spares have not been put to use as at December 31, 2022 and 2021. Critical
spares include major items and parts critical to be kept on hand to ensure uninterrupted operations of
the equipment.

c. The depreciation charge has been allocated in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

Cost of revenue (note 16) 

General and administration expenses ( note 17) 

2022 
USD ('000) 

60,757 

560 

61,317 

2021 
USO ('000) 

59,116 

501 

59,617 

d. As at December 31, 2022 and 2021, all of the above assets were subject to a floating charge that
forms security for bank borrowings (note 12).

e. During the year, transfer of USD 28,428 thousand (2021: USD 15,669 thousand) from advance
payments for long term parts and repairs to property, plant and equipment was adjusted from current
year additions to property, plant and equipment.
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

As an outcome of the reassessment of the asset retirement obligation exercise, the Company reviewed 
the revised estimated residual value of the property, plant and equipment reflecting the market 
assessments. The residual/scrap value estimates are based on weight estimated from various as-built 
drawings and documents and estimates of similar equipment's based on the consultant's know-how and 
engineering judgement. These revised estimates further looked into the various categories of the metals 
and values based on the London Metal Exchange with an adjustment for the local market. Based on this 
methodology, the revised residual value reflects a reduction in the previous estimate by USD 53.5 million. 
As required by IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the above revision 
in estimate has been accounted prospectively by adjusting the depreciation charge on the assets by 
providing accelerated depreciation. 

The effect of changes in depreciation expense due to the revision in residual value in the current and future 
years is as follows: 

Depreciation 

6. INVENTORIES

Spare parts 

Chemicals 

Less: Provision for slow-moving spares 

2022 
USD ('000) 

3,328 

Movement in allowance for impairment of inventories are as follows: 

At January 1 

Allowance recognised during the year 

Reversals/write offs 

At December 31 

7. RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables (due from EWA) 

Less: Provision for impairment 

Due from related parties (note 20) 

2023 
USD ('000) 

3,328 

2022 
USD ('000) 

23,684 

998 

24,682 

(2,413) 

22,269 

2022 
USD ('000) 

849 

2,059 

(495) 

2,413 

2022 
USO ('000) 

42,526 

(18,810) 

23,716 

19 

23,735 

Later 
USO ('000) 

46,877 

2021 
USO ('000) 

24,405 

605 

25,010 

(849} 

24,161 

2021 
USO ('000) 

635 

677 

(463} 
849 

2021 
USO ('000) 

63,896 

(17,612} 

46,284 

102 

46,386 

Trade receivables (due from EWA) relate to sale of electricity and water and are due within 45 days from 
the date of invoice. The Company's exposures to credit and currency risk related to trade receivables are 
disclosed in note 22. 

December 31, 2022 

December 31, 2021 

Total 
USO ('000) 

23,716 

46,284 

20 

Neither past 
due nor 
impaired 

USO ('000) 

23,716 

46,284 

Past due but not impaired 
Less than 
90 days 

USO ('000) 
90-120 days
USD ('000) 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Movement in allowance for receivables are as follows: 

Balance beginning of year 
Additions 
Balance end of year 

8. OTHER ASSETS

Prepayments and other assets 

Advance to suppliers 

2022 
USD ('000) 

17,612 
1,198 

18,810 

2022 
USD ('000) 

2,595 

480 

3,075 

2021 
USO ('000) 

16,776 
836 

17,612 

2021 
USO ('000) 

2,723 

798 

3,521 

Prepayments and other assets include an amount of USD 1,067 thousand (December 31, 2021: USO 
1,288 thousand) which represents un-amortised portion of payment of USD 4,139 thousand to EWA in 
relation to certain commitments of the Company. The benefit of this payment is estimated to accrue over 
a period of remaining life of the PWPA. 

9. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2022 2021 

USD ('000) USD ('000) 

Bank balances 14,480 18,086 

Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 months 21,122 22,504 

Cash on hand 4 3 

Cash and bank balances 35,606 40,593 

Less: Fixed deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 
months (21,122} (22,504} 

Cash and cash equivalents 14,484 18,089 

Expected credit losses on balances with banks is not considered material due to short term to expected 
maturity. 

10. STATUTORY RESERVE

As required by Bahrain Commercial Companies' Law 2001 (and subsequent amendments), a minimum of 
10% of the net profit should be transferred to a statutory reserve each year until this reserve is equal to 
50% of the paid-up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution except in the circumstances 
stipulated in the above law. The Company has transferred USD 4,188 thousand to the statutory reserve 

for the year ended December 31, 2022 (2021: USD 4,783 thousand). 

11. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES' END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

2022 
USO ('000) 

Balance at the beginning of year 1,359 

Charge for the year 219 

Payments (71) 

Balance at the end of year 1,507 

21 

2021 
USO ('000) 

1,201 

233 

(75} 

1,359 

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

12. BANK BORROWINGS

2022 

USO ('000) 

Secured bank loans 310,914 

Less: Transaction costs (829) 

310,085 

Classified as: 

Non-current liabilities 252,491 

Current liabilities 57,594 
310,085 

2021 

USO ('000) 

394,890 

(1,172) 

393,718 

341,089 
52,629 

393,718 

The above borrowings represent the amounts drawn by the Company under various floating rate loan 

facilities obtained from a syndicate of banks, which are outstanding as at December 31, 2022. The facilities 
have been obtained by the Company for payment of the purchase .consideration to EWA, Phase Ill 

construction activities and for working capital. The above borrowings carry a floating charge over the 

Company's property, plant and equipment (note 5). 

Since the borrowings are denominated in USO, the Company does not have any significant foreign 
currency risk. For information on interest rate risk and liquidity risk, refer note 22. 

Significant terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows: 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 
Nominal Yeai of Original Carrying Originai Carrying 

Currenc� interest rate maturitl amount amount amount amount 

USO ('000) USO ('000) USO ('000) USO ('000) 

Senior debt USO LIBOR+0.55 2026 592,944 166,855 592,944 208,479 
Commercial 
debt USO LIBOR+1.40 2026 401,122 144,059 401,122 186,411 

The following is the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for bank borrowings arising 

from financing activities: 

At January 1 
Repayment of bank borrowings* 

At December 31 

2022 

USO ('000) 

394,890 

(83,976) 

310,914 

2021 

USO ('000) 

459,711 

(64,821) 

394,890 

*Includes partial repayments against bullet amount payable at the end of the term for both the years.

13. OTHER LIABILITIES
2022 2021 

USO ('000) USO ('000) 

Trade payables 249 1,028 

Accrued interest 3,180 3,875 

Other accrued expenses 5,153 28,364 

Related party payables ( note 20) 24 

8,606 33,267 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.CC) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

14. PROVISION FOR DISMANTLING COST

A provision is made in respect of the Company's obligation, as per the Land Rights Agreement with the 
MoF (the "agreement"), to dismantle the power plant on completion of the term of the agreement, which is 

30 years from the Scheduled Commercial Operation Date. 

Due to long-term nature of the liability, there is a significant uncertainty in estimating the provision for the 
costs that will be incurred. The Company had estimated these costs, assuming that the land will be restored 

using the technology and materials that are available currently ( current cost), adjusted with an inflation rate 
estimated over remaining years. The current cost of disman�ling was carried at its present value as at 

December 31, 2022 using a discount rate of 7% (2021: 7%). 

Movement during the year: 

Balance at January 1 

Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost (note 18) 

Reduction in provision due to change in estimate (note 5) 

Balance at December 31 

15. REVENUE

Capacity charge: 

Power 

Water 

Add: Deferred revenue 

Variable charge: 

Power 

Water 

Recovery of gas consumed 

2022 
USO ('000) 

34,172 

2,392 

36,564 

2022 

USO ('000) 

44,953 

81,877 

3,737 

130,567 

10,165 

4,294 

14,459 

302,608 

447,634 

2021 
USO ('000) 

38,364 

2,236 

(6,428) 

34,172 

2021 

USO ('000) 

44,257 

81,613 

3,737 

129,607 

10,183 

4,844 

15,027 

311,299 

455,933 

Capacity charge represents the revenue from capacity sale of electricity and water and is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the term of the PWPA, adjusted for estimated increase in the capacity of water 
generation. An estimate of electricity and water capacity required to be made available to the EWA over 

the PWPA period forms the basis for recognising the capacity charge revenue over the PWPA term. 

The variable charge represents revenue from sale of electricity and water and is arrived at based on the 
agreed tariff as per PWPA and the actual units of electricity and water delivered during the year. 

The cost of gas consumed in operations is recovered from the EWA as part of sale of electricity and water 

and is based on the computation agreed as per the PWPA. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

16. COST OF REVENUE

Gas consumed 

Depreciation (note 5) 

Staff costs 

Amortisation of TDS settlement 

Other production and maintenance costs 

17. GENERAL AND ADMINSTRATION EXPENSES

Staff costs 

Impairment loss on trade receivables ( note 7) 

Insurance 

Communication and IT expenses 

Depreciation (note 5) 

Legal, professional and consultancy fees 

Crisis management expenses 

Security & Fire Fighting costs 

Facility management expenses 

Travel and transportation costs 

Staff welfare expenses 

Trainings and seminars 

Non-recoverable VAT 

Other expenses 

24 

2022 

USD ('000) 

294,562 

60,757 

6,400 

221 

12,048 

373,988 

2022 

USD ('000) 

2,287 

1,198 

1,813 

478 

560 

649 

314 

176 

128 

161 

152 

45 

264 

8,225 

2021 

USD ('000) 

303,258 

59,116 

6,172 

221 

11,111 

379,878 

2021 

USD ('000) 

2,147 

836 

1,566 

506 

501 

420 

21 

391 

183 

108 

150 

94 

23 

248 

7,194 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

18. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Interest income 

Finance income 
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred from 
equity 

Interest on borrowings 

Interest rate swap net income 
Unwinding of discount on provision for dismantling cost (note 
14) 

Amortisation of loan origination fees 

Commitment fees 
Interest income written off 

Foreign exchange loss 

Finance expense 
Net finance expense 

19. COMMITMENTS

Long Term Parts and Repairs Agreement 

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2022 

USO ('000) 

509 

509 

15,951 
9,601 

(4,661) 

2,392 
343 

106 

23,732 

343 

24,075 

23,566 

2022 

USO ('000) 

27,198 

27,198 

2021 

USO ('000) 

14 

14 

19,144 
5,122 

2,236 

382 

102 

64 

27,050 

316 

27,366 

27,352 

2021 

USO ('000) 

38,008 

38,008 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties 
include entities over which the Company exercises significant influence, major shareholders, directors and 
key management personnel of the Company. 

The transactions and balances with the related parties (major shareholders) included in these financial 
statements are as follows: 

Technical fee and other consultancy charges 
Staff costs 
Reimbursements 

25 

2022 
USD ('000) 

244 
1,174 
(145) 

2021 
USO ('000) 

334 
1,070 
(145)

confid
entia

l

Mcendekia M
cendekia

acwapower.c
om

Feb 14, 2025 12:38 PM EST



HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Amounts due from related parties (note 7) 
Amounts due to related parties (note 13) 

2022 
USO ('000) 

19 
(24) 

2021 

USO ('000) 

102 

The transactions and balances with the related parties (affiliates) included in these financial statements 
are as follows: 

Technical fee and other consultancy charges 

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2022 

USO ('000) 

115 

2021 

USO ('000) 

205 

The Company uses interest rate swaps and currency forward contracts as part of its interest rate and 
foreign currency risk management respectively. These derivatives qualify and have been designated by 
the Company as cash flow accounting hedge as per the requirements IFRS 9 Financial instruments. Fair 
value of interest rate swaps agreements and currency forward contracts are estimated based on the 
prevailing interest and forward rates of the related foreign currencies respectively. 

The Company has entered into Interest Rate Swaps {"IRSs") transactions to hedge the interest rate 
exposure of its term loans as follows: 

The bank borrowings {refer to note 12) bears interest at USO-LIBOR plus applicable margins. The 
Company has entered into "pay fixed, receive variable" IRS agreements with various counterparties. 

The details of such agreements and contracts outstanding as at the reporting dates are provided in the 
following table: 

Interest rate swaps 

Currency forward contracts 

Assets 
Non-current 
Current 

Liabilities 
Non-current 
Current 

Effective portion 

Notional 
amount 

USO ('000) 

2022 

289,844 

11,109 

300,953 

2021 

Fair value 
USO ('000) 

{2,659) 

(2,701) 

(5,360) 

Notional 
amount 

USO ('000) 

352,786 

20,141 

372,927 

2022 
USO ('000) 

291 
390 
681 

4,469 
1,572 

6,041 

5,360 

Fair value 
USO ('000) 

(38,213) 

(4,152) 

(42,365) 

2021 
USO {'000) 

24,439 
17,926 

42.365 

42,365 

The contractual maturity analysis of the interest rate swap and currency forward contracts are included 
as part of liquidity risk information in note 22. 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Movement in hedging reserve and hedging liability during the year 

Balance as at January 1 
Net fair value loss (a) 

Balance as at December 31 

(a) Net fair value loss
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges

Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to
profit or loss
Net changes in fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to
carrying amount of a non-financial asset

22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Overview 
Financial instruments 

2022 

USO ('000) 

(42,365) 
37,005 

(5,360) 

19,080 

15,951 

1,974 
37,005 

2021 

USO ('000) 

(69,135) 
26,770 

(42,365) 

6,023 

19,144 

1,603 
26,770 

Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets of the Company 
include cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables. Financial liabilities of the Company include 
bank borrowings, interest rate swaps (derivative financial instruments), provision for dismantling cost, 
trade payable, due to contractors and certain other current liabilities. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks from use of its financial instruments: 

• credit risk
• liquidity risk
• market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management 
of capital. The note also presents certain quantitative disclosures in addition to the disclosures 
throughout the financial statements. 

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 
the Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk management policies are established 
to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training 
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that counter-party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and 
cause the Company to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily on cash and 
cash equivalents and receivables. 

The Company limits the credit risk on bank balances by ensuring that these are maintained with banks 
having high credit ratings. 
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Exposure to credit risk 

HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

2022 2021 

USD ('000) USD ('000) 

Cash and cash equivalents 35,606 40,593 

Receivables 23,735 46,386 

59,341 86,979 

Trade receivables are due from EWA, which is part of the government of the Kingdom of Bahrain. The 
receivables from EWA represent revenue billed based on the PWPA terms. Credit risk on cash and cash 
equivalents is limited since these are maintained with bank having appropriate credit rating. 

Breakdown of receivables: 

Current 

Overdue 

Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 7 & 25) 

Liquidity risk 

2022 

USD ('000) 

23,835 

18,710 

(18,810) 

23,735 

2021 

USD ('000) 

46,486 

17,512 

(17,612) 

46,386 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by deiivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages its 
liquidity risk, by ensuring that banks and other facilities are adequate to meet its working capital 
requirements. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments: 

December 31, 2022 
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12

1-2 years 2-5 years
amount cash flows or less months 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

Bank borrowings 310,914 354,225 35,677 39,601 80,430 198,517 

Trade payables 249 249 249 

Derivative financial 
liabilities 

Interest rate swaps 3,340 3,707 454 (636) 1,631 2,258 

Currency forward 
contracts 2,701 2,861 1,032 845 946 38 

Total 317,204 361,042 37,412 39,810 83,007 200,813 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C} 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1 
2022 

December 31, 2021 
Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12

1-2 years 2-5 years
amount cash flows or less months 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

Bank borrowings 394,890 416,893 26,692 31,671 63,291 295,239 

Trade payables 1,028 1,028 1,028 
Derivative financial 
liabilities 

Interest rate swaps 38,213 38,836 8,719 7,277 10,838 12,002 
Currency forward 
contracts 4,152 4,375 1,086 971 1,547 771 

Total 438,283 461,132 37,525 39,919 75,676 308,012 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market factors, such as currency rates, interest rates and equity 
prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimizing the return on risk. 

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Company's earnings will be affected as a result of fluctuations in the 
value of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk 
is limited to its interest bearing demand deposits with banks and bank borrowings. 

The Company has hedged a significant portion of its interest rate risk on bank borrowings by entering 
into interest rate swap agreements. Since the deposits with banks are of short term nature and realisable 
at the values at which carried in the books, interest rate fluctuations do not have significant impact on 
the carrying value of these deposits. 

The effective interest rate on bank borrowings during the year was 5.91 % (December 31, 2021: 5.66% ). 

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments 
was: 

Fixed rate instruments 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Variable rate instruments 
Bank borrowings 
Interest rate swaps 

29 

Carrying amount 
2022 2021 

USO ('000) USD {'000) 

35,606 

310,914 
3,340 

40,593 

394,890 
38,213 
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date and in average interest rates prevailing 
during the year would have increased ( decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The 
analysis is performed on the same basis as used for 2022. 

December 31, 2022 

Bank borrowings 

Interest rate swap 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) 

December 31, 2021 

Bank borrowings 

Interest rate swap 

Cash flow sensitivity (net) 

Profit or loss 

100bp 

Increase 

USD ('000) 

(3,641) 

3,333 

(308) 

(4,408) 

3,933 

(475) 

100bp 

Decrease 

USD ('000) 

2,575 

(3,333) 

(758) 

942 

(3,933) 

(2,991) 

Equity 

100bp 100bp 

Increase Decrease 

USO ('000) USO ('000) 

4,415 (4,560) 

4,415 (4,560) 

8,184 (8,520) 

8,184 (8,520) 

The Company is exposed to the following interest rate benchmarks within its hedge accounting 
relationships, which are subject to interest rate benchmark reform: USO LIBOR. 

The Company has closely monitored the market and the output from the various industry working groups 
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates. This includes announcements made by the 
LIBOR regulators. The regulators have clarified that, at the end of 2021, it will no longer seek to persuade 
or compel banks to submit LIBORs. 

In response to the announcements, the Company was supported by Shareholder's team formed to 
manage the transition in the initial stage. An international law firm was appointed to undertake a review 
of the relevant documentation to understand the impact and deliver an action plan to undertake the 
transition from IBORs to the risk-free-rates (RFR) with appropriate adjustments before USD LIBOR 
cessation date of June 2023. The project is planned to be carried out in two phases (i) Phase 1 (Due 
Diligence Phase) and Phase 2 (Implementation Phase). 

Phase 1 of the project was completed during the last quarter of 2022 with feedback from the 
Shareholders team managing the project, followed by the engagement of an external legal advisor by 
the Company to provide necessary guidance and support in Phase 2. 

Based on the transition plan, the Company has launched the process with the lenders by sharing the 
proposed terms for transition to the new RFR and a timeline for the next steps including the agreement 
on the proposed amendments and securing of necessary consent by end of 2023-01. At the close of 
the year 2022, the Company received comments from the lenders on the proposed terms and is in a 
process of discussion to reach common acceptable terms for all lenders. The Company expects to 
complete the implementation phase by early 2023-02. 

Refer to note 21 for details of the hedging instruments and hedged items in the scope of the IFRS 9 
amendments due to interest rate benchmark reform, by hedge type. The terms of the hedged items listed 
match those of the corresponding hedging instruments. 

The Company will continue to apply the amendments to IFRS 9 until the uncertainty arising from the 
interest rate benchmark reforms with respect to the timing and the amount of the underlying cash flows 
that the company is exposed to ends. The Company has assumed that this uncertainty will not end until 
the Company's contracts that reference LI BORs are amended to specify the date on which the interest 
rate benchmark will be replaced, the cash flows of the alternative benchmark rate and the relevant 
spread adjustment. 
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(iij Currency risk 

HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 

Currency risk is the risk that the Company's earnings will be affected as a result of fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates. 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on liabilities for commitments under the L TPRA, bank borrowings 
and certain purchases denominated in foreign currencies. The majority of the foreign currency payments 
are in US dollars, except for payments under L TPRA. The Company has effectively hedged approximately 
50% of its currency rate risk relating to its commitments under the L TPRA by way of entering into currency 
forward contracts. The Company perceives the currency risk, on the transactions denominated in Bahraini 
Dinars, to be low, as the US dollar is pegged against the Bahraini Dinar. 

Exposure to currency risk 
The Company's significant exposure to currency risk was as follows: 

Estimated cost of LTPRA* 
Notional amount of the currency forward 
contracts 
*cash flows to occur over 3 years

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk 

2022 

USO ('000) Euro ('000) 
(22,218) (15,232) 

(11,109) (7,616) 

2021 

USD ('000) Euro ('000) 
(28,771) (19,689) 

(20,140) (13,872) 

A 10 percent strengthening (weakening) of the USO against the Euro at December 31 would have 
increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes 
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

December 31, 2022 
Notional amount of the currency 
forward contracts 

Net result 

December 31, 2021 
Notional amount of the currency 
forward contracts 

Net result 

Capital management 

Profit or loss 

10% 

Strengthening 

USO ('000) 

794 
794 

1,580 
1,580 

10% 

Weakening 

USO ('000} 

(794) 
(794) 

{1,580) 
(1,580) 

Equity 

10% 10% 

Strengthening Weakening 

USO {'000) USD ('000} 

The Board's policy is to maintain investor, lender and Government confidence and to be able to meet 
the requirements of the PWPA. The Company is currently significantly leveraged. The Board of Directors 
monitors that there is sufficient capital to ensure smooth working of the current operations. 

The Company maintains a project lifetime financial model which is reviewed and updated on a six 
monthly basis. The management uses this model to plan cash flows and ensures that the Company 
continues to meet debt covenants. The Company has complied with all other externally imposed capital 
requirements throughout the year. 
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23. FAIRVALUES

HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C} 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Underlying the definition of fair value is a presumption that an enterprise is a going concern without any 

intention or need to liquidate, curtail materially the scale of its operations or undertake a transaction on 

adverse terms. The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities, presented in the statement of 

financial position, are set out in the table below. 

Having regard to the nature of these financial assets and liabilities, their carrying value approximates 

the fair value. 

Total carrying 

At fair value Amortised cost Amount 

USO ('000)s USO ('000) USD ('000) 

December 31, 2022 

Receivables 23,735 23,735 

Cash and cash equivalents 35,606 35,606 

Other financial assets 681 681 

681 59,341 60,022 

Bank borrowings 310,914 310,914 

Other financial liabilities 6,041 10,113 16,154 

6,041 321,027 327,068 

Total carrying 

At fair value Amortised cost Amount 

USO ('000) USD ('000) USO ('000) 

December 31, 2021 

Receivables 46,386 46,386 

Cash and cash equivalents 40,593 40,593 

86,979 86,979 

Bank borrowings 394,890 394,890 

Other financial liabilities 42,365 34,626 76,991 

42,365 429,516 471,881 

Fair value hierarchy 

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of 

the inputs used in making the measurements: 

• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2: valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. as derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in

active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that

are considered less active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or

indirectly observable from market data.
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HIDD POWER COMPANY B.S.C.(C) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 

• Level 3: valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted market prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities, measured at fair value as at the end of the year, by level 
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized: 

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total 

December 31, 2022 

Assets 

Derivative financial instruments 681 681 

Liabilities 

Derivative financial instruments 6,041 6,041 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

December 31 , 2021 

Liabilities 

Derivative financial instruments 42,365 42,365 

Valuation technique of forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps 

Market comparison technique: The fair value is based on the broker quotes. Similar contracts are traded 

in an active market and quotes reflect the actual transaction in similar instrument. 

24. APPROPRIATIONS

The Annual General Meeting was held in May 2022. The Company is obligated to transfer the excess 

cash flow as the mandatory prepayment in respect of the Bullet Repayment under the Commercial Bank 

Facility agreement and hence, no cash dividend was declared for the year ended December 31, 2021. 

25. CONTINGENCY

The Company has received dispute notices and correspondence against their invoices to Electricity and 

Water Authority, Kingdom of Bahrain on the revenue components, primarily on water revenues related to 

the capacity shortfall and delivery of non-conforming water, which is defined as water that fails to conform 

to the Potable Water Delivery Specification as described in the Power and Water Purchase Agreement 

("PWPA"). 

A total amount of USO 18,710 thousand (2021: USO 17,512 thousand} has already been deducted from 

the payment of invoices billed as of December 31, 2022, which in the opinion of the Company, is not fully 

in line with the PWPA. The Company is assertive of recovering the outstanding receivable partially and is 

continuing its effort to resolve the disputed matters amicably with the off-taker. Nevertheless, as a matter 

of prudence, the Company has made a provision for already deducted amounts in full and other potential 

deductions of revenue charges. 
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